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The Redwood Library as originally built in 1747-1750, was a one-story
frame building with one large central room, 26 feet wide by 36 feet
long, with two small adjoining offices. The principal or west front
forms a pedimented temple with a four columned Doric portic. The
entablature surrounds the entire building. The two offices are placed
as wings, conneCted to the main building to form two half-pediments,
beginning at the lower part of the entablature. The east front had
a plain Done pediment with a -range of three Venetian windows in an
Ionic Order placed in three arches. The exterior of the building was
wood cut to resemble rusticated stone. The Redwood Library is the
earliest building in the colonies of definite date to use the motif,
although the Shirley Eustus House at Roxbury Massachusetts may_ antedate
it. The doorirame is beautifully ornamented with a shell and dolphin
frieze, providing the only light decorative element on the exterior. rn

-: m
Harrison also used design books for the interior of the building. The
elaborately architectonic bookcases seem to relate to Batty Langley’s -

Treasury of Designs. The ceiling in the main room has a Thallow molding r
design with a delicate dentiled cornice frieze around the room. The
interior was restored in 1915 by Norman Isham.

Toward the rear of the spacious east lawn is a small octagonal garden
pavilion erected on Abraham Redwood’s Newport Estate in 1748 by Harrison. C

It is treated in a similar rusticated wood as the original part of the fl
Library. Brought to the Library grounds in 1915 it fits well-- into-its ne r

surroundings. The gates at the north entrance are wrought-iron, dating - -

from 1729 and were formerly at the entrance to Abraham Redwoodts town
house in the ldwer part of Newport. -

- -. ..
- BOUNDARY . vs

The boundary is drawn to include all the property owned by the Redwood
- Library including the summer house which is considered as part of the

landmark, beginning at the northwest corner at the intersection of
Bellevue Avenue and Redwood Street then continuing east along the south
curb of Redwood Street about 280 feet to Lot 106 at 11 Redwood Street,
then south along this property line to Old Beach Road, then west along
the north-curb of Old Beach Road to Bellevue Avenue, then north along
the east curb of Bellevue Avenue to the point of beginning, an area of
1.56 acres. - - - - - -
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STAT CMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Redwood Library, Newport Rhode Island, was the first building
designed by Peter Harrison, one of America’s most prominent and important
architects of the eighteenth Century. It is probably th&most arch- -

itecturally significant of his buildings, although the least imaginative
0 in design. In 1748, the year of its conception, it was a unique example
-

- in America of Palladian Design, then enjoying great popularity in
England. It is derived ultimately from one of Lord Burlington’s small

o garden temples at Chiswick which had a classic Doric portico surmounted
by a full pediment and flanked by two small wings of half pediment form.
In the post-colonial years this form was to become increasingly popular
and culminated in the classical temples of the early century in the
designs of Thomas Jefferson and the Greek Revival. - -

In -

The dependenceon books is characteristic of the age and it is to
- - - Harnisons credit that he could adapt the designs to native scale and

- materials. After his first attempt at the Redwood Library he became
LU -- better acquainted with the forms and was able to design more imaginativel
w but the building stands as a monument to the introduction of a new taste

and to the man who was one of the first to raise architecture to an art
in America. - -

- - -
- HISTORY - - - -

In 1747 Abraham Redwood contributed L500 to a Newport philosophical
society for the purchase of books, and other Newport citizens subscribed
an additional L5,000 for the construction of a library building. In
June 1748, land was presented to Mr. Redwood for the structure. In
-July, Joseph Harrison, Peter’s brother was chosen director and it was
probably at his suggestion that he was selected to draw the plan. Peter
Harrison, up to this time had been a sea captain and merchant like his
brother, developing an interest in architecture through his extensive
travels abroad. In 1748 he was in London at which time he became familar
with the Kent-Burlington circle and English Palladianism.

Going beyond colonial design, Harrison chose the temple form used by the
Earl of Burlington at Chiswick and by William Kent as a garden pavilion
at Ilolkham. Two of Harrison’s books, Edward Hoppus’ Palladio and
Issac Ware’s Designs of Inigo Jones and Others contain a desion identicalC
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with the facade of the Redwood Library. Nearly all of the exterior
designs can be found in these two books and William Kent’s Designs of
Inigo Jones. In this latter volume the three range of Venetian windows

- used by Harrison for the original rear facade are illustrated as used
at Chiswick. A similar treatment, with more detail, appeared in Ware
and as- the Headpiece to the Second Book of Hoppus. The doorway details
can be found in Kent’s first volume.

The library was completed in 1750. Large additions to the side and rear
were made in 1858, when the three windows in the back were salvaged and
placed to the side. There were also -additions in 1875 and 1913.

During the Revolution, the building becamean officer’s club, and as a
result about one half of the collection was lost. In 1780 it served
as the house for the state assembly but in 1801 the Redwood Library

- Company was reorganized and has continued in operation to the present
time. -

GPO 921.724
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- 2. THEMES. IF ARCHEOLOGICAL SITE WRITE ARCH BEFORE THEME NO.

Rhode Island Theme OC, Architecture Colonial
3. NAMES OF SITE 4. APPROX. ACREAGE

Redwood Library and Athenaeum 1 acre
5. EXACT LOCATION County.township, roada, etc. If dIfficWt to find. sketchon .SupplementaryShut -

- 50 Bellevue Avenue, Newport, Newport County.
6. NAME AND ADDRESS OF PRESENT OWNER Also administrator If differentfrom owner

- Redwood Library and Athenaeum, Newport.
7. IMPORTANCE AND DESCRIPTION Deacribebriefly what makessite Important and what remainsare extant

Designedby Peter Harrison, the most distinguished architect of
colonial America and erected in 1748-50, the Redwood Library is probably
the least successful in design and yet the most architecturally significant
of his many buildings. It was important at the time becauseit was a unicue
exemplar in America of the newest English mode--the Palladian style, and it
also pointed to the direction of the future evolution o± architectural style.
With its Roman-Doric temple facade, approachedby steps betweenparotids,
and with its pedimental gablecarried back to form the main roof slope<it
was the first approximation in America of the classical temple form. In
the post-colonial years, this form was to becomeincreasingly popular and
culminated in the classical temples of the early 19th century Greek Revival
period.

In 1711.7 Abraham Redwood contributed 500 to a Newport philosophical
society for the purchaseof books, and other Newport citizens subscribed an
additional i5,000 for the construction of a library building. Peter Harrison,
an amateurarchitect of Newport, donatedhis services in designing the
structure and this building representsthe results of his first major archi
tectural effort.

Harrison was well-versed in the new English Palladian mode, and
he sought for proper models in his personal library of architectural books.
For the facade of the library he chose a temple portico with side wings -

forming the ends of a larger and lower pediment, which he found in the head
piece to Book Ill of Edward Hoppus’ Andrea Palladio’ s Architecture in Four Books
2 vols., London, 1735-36. Certain details of the facade and elementsof the
plan evidently came from a gardenpavilion designed by William Kent for

8. BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES Give &esl soercu; givelocation of manuscripts andrare works Continued-

Seepae 3.
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Historic American Building Surver: 3 photos, 1937.
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Rhade Island Redwood Library and Athenaeum

7. Continued:

Charles Hotham and published as plate 43 in Isaac Ware’s Designs from Inigo
Jonesand Others London, 1735. The rear facade, especially its three
Venetian windows now moved to form the south side wing, came from a garden
temple at Chiswick designedby Lord Burlington and published in William Kent’s
Designs of Inigo Jones London, 1727, I, plate 73. For the elaborate book
casesinsidethe library, Harrison probably relied on plate 35 in Batty Langley’s
Treasury of Designs London, 1745.

All this dependenceon books was characteristic of advancedwork in
the Late Georgian period in the colonies--it was extremely academic in method,
and the results were not always happy. The RedwoodLibrary is thus devoid of
color and feeling. It is also faulty as a formal design, for the projecting
"half-pediments" of the wings, in their original state, were excresences
essentially unrelated to the main mass. The main mass also lacks the sheer
size that warrants the grand-scale treatmentof the Roman classical temple,
for the library’s four columns are only 17 feet high. Except for the side
wings, however, the faults of the Redwood Library were the faults of an age
rather than of an individual.

Seekingthe impressivenessof classical stone masonrywith the
inexpensivenessof wood, Harrison’s specifications calledfor an exterior
surface of "Pine Plank worked in imitation of Rustick." The history of the
use of rusticated wood siding in Georgian Architecture has never been thoroughly
explored but it seemspossible that Peter Harrison may have been the one
primarily responsible for its adoption. The Redwood Library is the earliest
building in the colonies of definite date to employ the motive, through the
Shirley Eustus Hote a-b Roxbury, Massachusettsc. 1747 may antedate it.
The use of rusticated wood siding becamefairly popular in New England after
1750. Immediately after its completion, the Redwood Library becameone of
the show.placesof Newport,

As constructed in 1747-50, the Redwood Library was a one-story
frame building with one large central room, 26 feet wide by 36 feet long, in
which housed the stacks for the 1200 books, and the projecting wings contained

small offices. Large additions to the sides and rear were made in 1858,
1875 and 1913. The original front central part of the structure was restored
in 1915 by Norman M. Isham to PeterHarrison’s original design. The structure
is still used as a library and is open to visitors.
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